
Cabinet  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Cabinet to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 
Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 8 June 2021 
 
TIME:  1.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Two New Bailey, New Bailey Street, Salford, M3 5EN (Sat Nav - M3 
5AY) 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

1   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 13th April 2021. 
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4   Proposed expansion of Springwood Primary School  
 
Report of the Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s 
Services. 
 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

5   Any other urgent business  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright, Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1                                                                                                                                                     Cabinet minutes 13.04.21 
 

Cabinet  

Held on Tuesday 13 April 2021 
(A Live Microsoft Teams meeting – audio only)   

Present 
Paul Dennett   City Mayor (in the Chair) 
Tracy Kelly    Statutory City Mayor 

Lead Members: 

Paula Boshell Anti-Poverty, Neighbourhoods, Financial Inclusion and 
Equalities 

Bill Hinds                            Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 
David Lancaster, MBE       Environment and Community Safety 
Gina Reynolds                   Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing 

Executive Support Members (at the invitation of the City Mayor): 

Sharmina August                Equalities, Communities and Social Impact 
Barbara Bentham               Workforce and Industrial Relations 
Stephen Coen   Executive Support Member for Culture, Leisure and Sport 
Roger Jones   Executive Support Member for Transport 
Mike McCusker                   Planning, Housing and Sustainable Development 
John Walsh                         Education and Learning 

Officers: 

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz           Director of Public Health 
Anne Arcus   Regulatory Services Officer 
Sam Betts            Assistant Director Human Resources & OD 
Joanne Hardman   Chief Finance Officer 
Peter Openshaw   Assistant Director Environment  and Community Safety 
Jacquie Russell   Assistant Director Strategy & Change 
Tom Stannard                    Chief Executive 
Cathy Starbuck                  Assistant Director Education Work and Skill 
David Wilcock           Interim City Solicitor 
John Wooderson           Head of Service Urban Renewal 
Liz Wright                          Democratic Service Officer 

1. Apologies for absence 
Apologies were received from Councillor Jim Cammell and Councillor John 

Merry. 

2. Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of proceedings 
 Approval of the minutes was moved by Councillor Bill Hinds and seconded by 

Councillor John Walsh. 

Resolved: That, the minutes of the meeting held on 23.03.21 were approved as a 

correct record. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2                                                                                                                                                     Cabinet minutes 13.04.21 
 

4. Additional licensing scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple 
Occupation (HMOs) across the city of Salford. 

The Head of Service Urban Renewal (John Wooderson) introduced the report and 

highlighted the following. 

 The report included the outcome of the consultation in relation to an additional 
scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Salford. 

 A reported was presented to Cabinet in October 2020 and the proposals, to 
formally consult on an additional Licensing Scheme for 3 and 4 person HMO in 
Salford, were approved.   

 The statutory consultation ran from 13th October to 5th January 2021 and this was 
an extended period, beyond the minimum 10 weeks that were required, and the 
decision to extend the consultation was taken because of the Covid19 pandemic 
and the Christmas holidays. 

 The consultation invited views from residents, Businesses, landlords, managing 
and letting agents, professional bodies, tenants and any other stakeholders and 
persons that may have been affected by the proposals. 

 A total of 184 responses were received, the majority were via the online survey.  
Of those 184, 59% identified themselves as residents, 34% as either landlords or 
managing agents, 7% as ‘other’ (which included professional bodies), and 1% 
were unknown. 

 Members were signposted to the appendices of the report for the detail of the 
consultation and the responses received.  Some points from the responses were 
highlighted, such as: 
o When asked about 3 and 4 person HMO’s; 

- 59% felt that the properties were poorly managed 
- 57% felt that the properties were in poor conditions 
- 61% felt that the properties are not routinely maintained 
- 52% felt that tenants were not vetted for the properties 
- 69% felt that the properties have waste management issues 

o 40% of the online survey responses received felt that the base licence fee 
was too high, 31% felt it was about right, 24% felt it was too low and 5% did 
not know. 

o There were quite a few suggestions that ‘good landlords’ should be rewarded 
by a reduced fee. The response to this suggestion was contained within the 
proposals for licence fee reduction, offering a reduced fee for landlords who 
are part of Salford’s accreditation scheme and for those landlords making 
early licence applications. 

o There were many comments regarding refuse issues and property 
management with suggestions as to how this should be managed. The 
response to this was to include it within the prescribed licence conditions, 
there has also been an amendment to the conditions to have the property 
inspected by the landlord or managing agent at least a minimum of once a 
year. 

o A response was received from the National Residential Landlords Association 
(NRLA), their main objections requested an extended deadline for the 
consultation following the recent government COVID 19 announcement, and 
comments relating to the proposed fee structure and financial impacts for 
landlords should the scheme be approved. 

o Fees were slightly higher than previous schemes due to requirements for 
inspections and so flexible terms would be available over three years. 

o The scheme was self-funding through the fees. 

Page 2



3                                                                                                                                                     Cabinet minutes 13.04.21 
 

o There was a need for HMOs to provide accommodation to meet the needs of 
certain groups of residents but this needed to be balanced with the need for 
this accommodation to be of a decent standard and also balanced with the 
need for family homes. 
 

The City Mayor (CM) invited questions and comments from the members. 

 The Lead Member (LM) for Finance and Support Services supported the 
recommendations.  They added that more residents were contacting them 
concerned about the number of family homes that were being converted to HMOs 
in their area.  The licencing scheme therefore was needed to manage the 
standards of the accommodation and protect tenants and residents. 

 The LM for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing fully supported the 
recommendations and added that their Ward was the first to introduce a licensing 
scheme of this nature and it had proved to be very popular and had since been 
implemented successfully in other areas of the city.  The scheme was needed to 
encourage good landlords and they welcomed the flexible payments for 
landlords. 

 The Executive Support Member (ESM) for Education and Learning fully 
supported the previous LM comments.  They commented that a main focus for 
landlords was profit and the council’s focus ha to be to protect tenants in rented 
properties.  The council also had a role to help local communities, as it was often 
very challenging for communities when many HMOs were in the area.  They 
welcomed the rewards for good landlords to help embed good practice. 

 The ESM for Equalities, Communities and Social Impact fully supported the 
scheme and the recommendation.  They commented that they understood the 
need for HMO accommodation and that for some people was often the only 
option available to them but the licensing scheme was essential to ensure safety 
and decent standards. 

 The ESM for Planning, Housing and Sustainable Development fully supported the 
scheme and the recommendations as they were in the best interests of tenants, 
the communities around HMOs and landlords as well and the evidence in the 
report showed this. 

 The LM for Transport referred to the report and asked if it was ensured there was 
a was a balanced approached with landlords and if they were approached for 
their views on a regular basis and if meetings were held to talk through any of 
their issues.  It was confirmed that an annual forum was held with landlords, 
which was well attended and well received.  Salford’s approach was to take 
enforcement action where appropriate but to also support landlords to provide 
accommodation of the required standard.  Some funding had been won to 
support landlords with advice on issues such as how to deal with bad tenants and 
a lot of advice and guidance had been provided to help them to implement the 
Covid19 regulations.   

 The ESM for Transport also asked how Salford measured up in terms of best 
practice in comparison with other GM local authorities.  It was reported that 
Salford was a market leader for its work with licensing and working with 
landlords.  Langworthy was the first Ward in the country to implement a licensing 
scheme and council had been approached and commissioned by a Local 
Authority on the south coast to act as consultants on how to successfully 
implement a licensing scheme. 

 The ESM for Workforce and Industrial Relations was fully supportive of the 
scheme and recommendations.  They commented that the Claremont Ward had 

Page 3



4                                                                                                                                                     Cabinet minutes 13.04.21 
 

seen a rise in the applications for HMOs and so it was important to have licensing 
in place as this would help improve standards.  

 The Head of Service Urban Renewal commented that the housing strategy was 
trying to ensure that appropriate housing options were available to residents as 
well as addressing the issues that were associated with HMOs as well as the 
post Covid economic situation.   

 The situation with HMOs would be monitored and services would work with 
landlord, residents, tenants and communities to get better standards for 
accommodation.   

 The Head of Service Urban Renewal thanked the wider housing team for all their 
work in the city to implement the housing strategy. 

 The CM asked how Salford linked with the GM good landlord scheme.  It was 
confirmed that officers had worked closely with GM colleagues to help develop 
the Good Landlord proposals and the evidence showed that in Salford the full 
range of powers were used appropriately. 

 The LM for Anti-Poverty, Neighbourhoods, financial Inclusion and Equalities 
asked if the increase in HMOs was linked to the Government welfare reforms.  It 
was explained that housing allowance could be a powerful economic driver in 
terms of providing more allowance for a single room over a family home.  There 
was also a need for more single accommodation.  The scheme would be the first 
tie landlords would be required to let the council know how many of these HMOs 
existed and this would also be very helpful information for developing the housing 
strategy for the city. 

 The CM commented that there was not just one driver for the increase in the 
number of HMOs, but a number such as Government welfare reform, the labour 
market (low pay and zero hours contract), high property prices compared to 
wages. 

 The CM thanked the Head of Urban Renewal and the Regulatory Services Officer 
for the report and to all officers in the wider housing team for all their work. 
 

In conclusion, the Lead Member (LM) for Housing (Councillor Tracy Kelly) 

commented she was fully supportive of the scheme and the recommendations in the 

report and thanked all the staff involved for all their hard work bringing this to fruition. 

The CM read out the recommendations from the report for approval as follows: 

That the City Mayor in consultation with Cabinet: 
1. Authorises the designation of an additional licensing Authorises the designation 

of an additional licensing scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple 
Occupation (HMOs), under Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004 in Salford having 
regard to the evidence base contained within Annex 1, the consultation 
responses contained within Annex 2, the legislative requirements and non-
statutory guidance. 

2. Authorises the proposed fee structure for the additional licensing scheme for 3 
and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) as detailed in section 5 of 
this report; 

3. Authorises the proposed Licence Conditions for the additional licensing scheme 
for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) as detailed in Annex 3 
attached to this report;  

4. Authorises officers to carry out all necessary actions to publicise the designation 
for additional licensing scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs) to comply with the requirements of the Housing Act 2004. 

Page 4



5                                                                                                                                                     Cabinet minutes 13.04.21 
 

5. Acknowledges that the scheme is self-funding and staffing resources to deliver 
the scheme will be approved under delegated powers by the Strategic Director. 

 

Resolved: That, the City Mayor, in consultation with Cabinet approved the report 
and recommendations and: 
1. Authorised the designation of an additional licensing Authorises the designation 

of an additional licensing scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple 
Occupation (HMOs), under Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004 in Salford having 
regard to the evidence base contained within Annex 1, the consultation 
responses contained within Annex 2, the legislative requirements and non-
statutory guidance. 

2. Authorised the proposed fee structure for the additional licensing scheme for 3 
and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) as detailed in section 5 of 
this report; 

3. Authorised the proposed Licence Conditions for the additional licensing scheme 
for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) as detailed in Annex 3 
attached to this report;  

4. Authorised officers to carry out all necessary actions to publicise the designation 
for additional licensing scheme for 3 and 4 person Houses in Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs) to comply with the requirements of the Housing Act 2004. 

5. Acknowledged that the scheme is self-funding and staffing resources to deliver 
the scheme will be approved under delegated powers by the Strategic Director. 

5. Any other business. 
There were no items of any other business raised. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 4 

 

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR CHILDREN 

AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES 

 

TO:  CABINET 

ON 

8th JUNE 2021 

 

TITLE: PROPOSED PERMANENT EXPANSION OF SPRINGWOOD PRIMARY 
SCHOOL 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

The City Mayor, in consultation with Cabinet, as the decision maker for school 
organisation, is requested to reach a decision for the proposed permanent expansion 
of Springwood primary school, as of 1 September 2021. This will be achieved by 
enlarging onto a second site, Craig Hall. Such a decision must be reached in 
accordance with guidance issued by the Department for Education. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

Springwood primary school serves the whole of the City of Salford and provides 
specialist education for children with complex needs including profound and 
multiple learning difficulties (PMLD), severe learning difficulties (SLD), 
communication and interaction needs (C&I), autism (ASD) hearing impairment (HI), 
Other Difficulty/Disability (OTH), Specific Learning Difficulty (SpLD) and Visual 
Impairment (VI) for children aged from 2 to 11 years.  
 
Salford has experienced increased demand for Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities support (SEND) provision in recent years. In particular, increased demand 
has been felt for the type of specialist education Springwood primary provides.  
 
The proposed expansion would see a permanent increase of the number of pupils 
on roll at Springwood primary school. This would increase the capacity of the 
school by 60 pupils by enlarging onto a second site at Craig Hall, Preston Avenue, 
Irlam, M44 5XB from September 2021.  
 
Under the proposal, the overall capacity of the school will increase to 300 pupils 
(Nursery to Year 6). The admission of pupils across both sites, will be managed by 
the special educational needs statutory assessment process.  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Making significant changes ("prescribed alterations") to maintained schools" statutory 
guidance for proposers and decision-makers" (October 2018) 
 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/756572/Maintained_schools prescribed _ _alterations_guidance.pdf 
 

 

KEY DECISION: YES  

 

DETAILS: 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 On the 23 March 2021, the City Mayor, in consultation with Cabinet, as the decision 

maker for school organisation, approved the publication, of the Statutory Notice for 
the proposed permanent expansion of Springwood primary school, as of 1 
September 2021. 

 
1.2 The recent change in school organisation guidance means there is no longer a 

prescribed ‘pre-publication’ consultation period for prescribed alterations. The 
formal 4 weeks consultation period commenced following the publication of the 
Statutory Notice and letters outlining the proposal have been issued to 
parents/carers of pupils attending the school.  

 
1.3 The purpose of this report is to present to the City Mayor in consultation with 

Cabinet, as the decision maker for school organisation, the outcome of the 
statutory process and further factors for consideration, in order for a decision to be 
reached on this matter 

 
2. The Statutory Process 
 
2.1 In accordance with the proposal, a statutory notice (attached at appendix 1) was 

published in the Manchester weekly news (Salford edition). 
 
2.2 In accordance with the statutory procedures the notice invited comments 

/objections to the proposal within four weeks from the date of publication of the 
notice to be submitted to the local authority.  

 
The four week representation period expired on Monday 17th May 2021. No 
comments were received during this time. 

 
3. Factors to be considered by Decision Makers  
 
3.1  As a preliminary step: 
 

Page 8

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756572/Maintained_schools_prescribed_alterations_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756572/Maintained_schools_prescribed_alterations_guidance.pdf


 3 

(i) The Decision Maker must be satisfied that the published notice of the proposal 
complies with certain statutory requirements, as follows: 

 

 Part 2 of the Education and Inspections Act, 2006  

 Education and Inspections Act, 2006, Part 2 & 3 - Making significant changes 
("prescribed alterations") to maintained schools" statutory guidance for 
proposers and decision-makers" (October 2018) 

 Guidance referred to in the Background Documents section of this report.  
 

Officers of the Children's Services Directorate have sought legal advice concerning 
the wording and validity of the published notice and are satisfied that this meets 
statutory requirements.  

 
(ii) The Decision Maker must also be satisfied that the formal statutory consultation 

has been undertaken. Details of the consultation are confirmed within the published 
notice. Children's Services officers are similarly satisfied that such consultation 
meets with the statutory requirements.  

 
Subject to being satisfied on the above points, the City Mayor in consultation with 
Cabinet must reach a decision in accordance with the statutory guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State.  The following factors should not be taken to be 
exhaustive.  Their importance will vary, depending on the type and circumstances 
of the proposal.  All proposals should be considered on their individual merits. 

 
3.2 Publishing decisions 

 
All decisions (rejected and approved – with or without modifications) must give reasons 
for such a decision being made. Within one week of making a decision the decision-
maker should arrange (via the proposer as necessary) for the decision and the reasons 
behind it to be published on the website where the original proposal was published. 
The decision-maker must also arrange for the organisations below to be notified of the 
decision and reasons: 
 

 the LA (where the Schools Adjudicator or governing body is the decision-maker);  

 the governing body/proposers (as appropriate);  

 the trustees of the school (if any);  

 the local Church of England diocese;  

 the local Roman Catholic diocese;  

 for a special school, the parents of every registered pupil at the school;  

 any other organisation that they think is appropriate.  
 
 

3.3 Consideration of consultation and representation period  
 

The decision-maker will need to be satisfied that the appropriate fair and open local 
consultation and/or representation period has been carried out and that the proposer 
has given full consideration to all the responses received. If the proposer has failed to 
meet the statutory requirements, a proposal may be deemed invalid and therefore 
should be rejected. The decision-maker must consider ALL the views submitted, 
including all support for, objections to and comments on the proposal.  

Page 9



 4 

 
During the period of statutory consultation, a copy of the Statutory Notice was 
issued to: 
 

 All parents/carers of pupils registered and attending Springwood primary school 

 The governing body of Springwood primary school 

 Staff of Springwood primary school 

 Roman Catholic Diocese 

 Church of England Diocesan Board of Education 

 Neighbouring local authorities (those authorities who have children in attendance 
at Springwood primary school) 

 
In addition a copy of the Statutory Notice also appeared: 
 

 Manchester weekly news (Salford edition)  

 Published on both the school and the city council’s websites.   

 On display at Springwood primary school (including the Craig Hall site) for the 
specified 4 week consultation period. 

 
3.4  Education standards and diversity of provision 
  
Decision-makers should consider the quality and diversity of schools in the relevant 
area and whether the proposal will meet or affect the needs of parents; raise local 
standards and narrow attainment gaps.  
 
3.5  A school-led system with every school an academy 
 
The 2016 White Paper Education Excellence Everywhere, sets out the department’s 
aim that by the end of 2020, all schools will be academies or in the process of becoming 
academies. The decision-maker should, therefore, take into account the extent to 
which the proposal is consistent with this policy. Whilst this remains in the Government 
guidance as a matter to take into account, the Government recently stated that there 
would be no plans to bring legislation to bring about blanket conversion of all schools 
to become academies. 
 
3.6  Demand v Need 
  
Where a LA identifies the need for a new school, to meet basic need, section 6A of 
EIA 2006 places the LA under a duty to seek proposals to establish a free school via 
the ‘free school presumption’. However, it is still possible to publish proposals for new 
maintained school outside of the competitive arrangements, at any time, in order to 
meet demand for a specific type of place e.g. places to meet demand from those of a 
particular faith. In assessing the demand for new school places the decision-maker 
should consider the evidence presented for any projected increase in pupil population  
 
Salford has experienced increased demand for Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities support (SEND) provision in recent years. With an increase in 
children with Education and Health Care Plans, this has resulted in increased 
demand for places at Springwood primary school.  
 

Page 10



 5 

With demand for SEND provision continuing to grow, additional specialist 
places will be required. The proposal to increase capacity at Springwood 
primary school by expanding onto a second site, Craig Hall, will ensure the 
continued delivery of high quality and cost effective provision for the children 
and young people of Salford and provide local specialist provision. 
 
3.7  School size  
 
Decision-makers should not make blanket assumptions that schools should be of a 
certain size to be good schools, although the viability and cost-effectiveness of a 
proposal is an important factor for consideration. The decision-maker should also 
consider the impact on the LA’s budget of the need to provide additional funding to a 
small school to compensate for its size.  
 
3.8  Proposed admission arrangements and Governance and administration  
 
In assessing demand the decision-maker should consider all expected admission 
applications, not only those from the area of the LA in which the school is situated. 
They should also be satisfied around governance and administration and how the 
whole school activities will be managed. Before approving a proposal that is likely to 
affect admissions to the school the decision-maker should confirm that the admission 
arrangements of the school are compliant with the School Admissions Code. Although 
the decision-maker cannot modify proposed admission arrangements, the decision-
maker should inform the proposer where arrangements seem unsatisfactory and the 
admission authority should be given the opportunity to revise them. 

The admission of pupils across both sites, will be managed by the special 
educational needs statutory assessment process and ensure a successful 
outcome for the school, children and young people. 
 
3.9  Travel and accessibility  
 
Decision-makers should satisfy themselves that accessibility planning has been 
properly taken into account and the proposed changes should not adversely impact on 
disadvantaged groups. The decision-maker should bear in mind that a proposal should 
not unreasonably extend journey times or increase transport costs, or result in too 
many children being prevented from travelling sustainably due to unsuitable walking or 
cycling routes.  
 
A proposal should also be considered on the basis of how it will support and contribute 
to the LA’s duty to promote the use of sustainable travel and transport to school.  
Further information is available in the statutory Home to school travel and transport 
guidance for LAs. 
 
The proposed permanent expansion of Springwood primary school will ensure 
that school places and facilities are located and accessible to meet the needs of 
the local community and will not adversely impact disadvantaged groups 
 
3.10  Funding  
 
The decision-maker should be satisfied that any land, premises or necessary funding  

Page 11



 6 

required to implement the proposal will be available and that all relevant local parties 
(e.g. trustees or religious authority) have given their agreement. A proposal cannot be 
approved conditionally upon funding being made available. Where proposers are 
relying on the department as the source of capital funding, there can be no assumption 
that the approval of a proposal will trigger the release of capital funds from the 
department, unless the department has previously confirmed in writing that such 
resources will be available; nor can any allocation ‘in principle’ be increased. In such 
circumstances the proposal should be rejected, or consideration deferred until it is 
clear that the capital necessary to implement the proposal will be provided. 
 
The project capital costs have been met from the local authorities SEND and 
Basic Need capital funding streams. 
 

All specialist places at Springwood primary school will continue to be funded 
from the High Needs Block part of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).The 
revenue funding required for the additional places is included in the DSG 
allocation and the additional commissioned places have been agreed by 
Schools Forum. 
 
3.11  Changes to special educational need provision  
 
In planning and commissioning SEN provision or considering a proposal for change, 
LAs should aim for a flexible range of provision and support that can respond to the 
needs of individual pupils and parental preferences. This is favourable to establishing 
broad categories of provision according to special educational need or disability. 
Decision-makers should ensure that proposals:  
 

 take account of parental preferences for particular styles of provision or education 
settings;  

 take account of any relevant local offer for children and young people with SEN and 
disabilities and the views expressed on it;  

 offer a range of provision to respond to the needs of individual children and young 
people, taking account of collaborative arrangements (including between special 
and mainstream), extended school and Children’s Centre provision; regional 
centres (of expertise) and regional and sub-regional provision; out of LA day and 
residential special provision;  

 

 take full account of educational considerations, in particular the need to ensure a 
broad and balanced curriculum, within a learning environment where children can 
be healthy and stay safe;  

 support the LA’s strategy for making schools and settings more accessible to 
disabled children and young people and their scheme for promoting equality of 
opportunity for disabled people;  

 provide access to appropriately trained staff and access to specialist support  

and advice, so that individual pupils can have the fullest possible opportunities to 
make progress in their learning and participate in their school and community;  

 ensure that appropriate full-time education will be available to all displaced pupils. 

Page 12



 7 

 Their statements of special educational needs must be amended and all parental 
rights must be ensured. Other interested partners, such as the Health Authority 
should be involved. Pupils should not be placed long-term or permanently in a Pupil 
Referral Unit (PRU) if a special school place is what they need.  

 

 When considering any reorganisation of provision that the LA considers to be 
reserved for pupils with special educational needs, including that which might lead 
to children being displaced, proposers will need to demonstrate how the proposed 
alternative arrangements are likely to lead to improvements in the standard, quality 
and/or range of educational provision for those children. Decision-makers should 
make clear how they are satisfied that this SEN improvement test has been met, 
including how they have taken account.  

 
The proposal to permanently increase capacity at Springwood primary 
school will build on the good standards for teaching and learning already in 
place at the school and provide additional local places for local children with 
special educational needs.  
 
The admission of pupils across both sites, will be managed by the special 
educational needs statutory assessment process and ensure a successful 
outcome for the school, children and young people.  
 
Springwood primary school fully meets the Special Educational Needs 
Improvement Test, by the provision of fully accessible buildings, curriculum 
and other provision that is inclusive, thereby improving the standard, quality 
and range of educational provision for all pupils. 

 
4. Types of Decision: 
 
In considering the proposal, the Decision Maker can decide to: 

 

 reject the proposals; 

 approve the proposals; 

 approve the proposals with a modification (e.g. the school opening date); or 

 approve the proposals subject to them meeting a specific condition. 
 
5. The Decision 

 
In reaching its decision City Mayor in consultation with Cabinet must bear in mind the 
need to give reasons for its decision irrespective of whether the proposal is rejected or 
approved and must indicate the main factors/criteria for the decision. 

 
6. Conclusion 
 
The City Mayor, in consultation with Cabinet, as the decision maker for school 
organisation, is requested to reach a decision for the proposed permanent expansion 
of Springwood primary school, as of 1 September 2021. This will be achieved by 
enlarging onto a second site, Craig Hall. Such a decision must be reached in 
accordance with guidance issued by the Department for Education. 
 

Page 13



 8 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
The process followed, as set out in the report, is in accordance with the relevant 
legislation and statutory process. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
With demand for SEND provision continuing to grow, additional specialist places will 
be required. The proposal to increase capacity at Springwood primary school with the 
use of the Craig Hall site will ensure the continued delivery of high quality and cost 
effective provision for the children and Young People of Salford and provide local 
specialist provision. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 

The proposals comply with the requirements of The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 and the associated 
Government Guidance, and will ensure that the Council complies with its statutory 
duty to provide sufficient school places and meet the increased demand for places 
for children with complex needs.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee – Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434 

 
The project capital costs have been met from the local authorities SEND and Basic 
Need capital funding streams. 
 

All specialist places at Springwood primary school will continue to be funded from 
the High Needs Block part of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).The revenue 
funding required for the additional places is included in the DSG allocation and the 
additional commissioned places have been agreed by Schools Forum. 

 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire EXT: 6244 
The procurement of the additional works already undertaken were in line with the 
procurement rules. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

Page 14



 9 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Paula Newall  TEL NO: EXT 0447 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL 

 
 
Appendix 1 
 

Notice of Proposal for the Permanent Expansion of Springwood Primary 
School 

 
Notice is given in accordance with section 19(1) of the Education and Inspections Act 2006, that, 
Salford City Council intends to make a prescribed alteration to Springwood Primary School, Barton 
Road, Swinton, M27 5LL with effect from 1 September 2021 
 
Salford City Council is proposing to increase the number of pupils on roll at Springwood Primary 
School (increase the capacity of the school by 60 pupils) by enlarging onto a second site, Craig Hall, 
Preston Avenue, Irlam, M44 5XB. 
 
Springwood Primary School serves the whole of the City of Salford and provides specialist 
education for children with complex needs including profound and multiple learning difficulties 
(PMLD), severe learning difficulties (SLD), communication and interaction needs (C&I), autism 
(ASD) hearing impairment (HI), Other Difficulty/Disability (OTH), Specific Learning Difficulty (SpLD) 
and Visual Impairment (VI) for children aged from 2 to 11 years. All children admitted to the 
Springwood Primary School have an Education Health Care Plan. 
 
The current capacity of Springwood Primary School is 240 pupils. Under the proposal, the overall 
capacity of the school will increase to 300 pupils (Nursery to Year 6) by enlarging onto a second 
site, Craig Hall.  
 
The proposed implementation date is 1 September 2021. The admission of pupils across both sites, 
will be managed by the special educational needs statutory assessment process.  
 
This notice is an extract from the complete proposal.  A complete copy of the proposal can be 
obtained from: 
 

 Paula Newall, Children’s Services Directorate, 2nd Floor, Unity House, Salford Civic Centre, 
Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5AW  

 Or available to view at https://www.salford.gov.uk/schoolexpansion 
 

Within four weeks from the date of publication of this proposal (by 17 May 2021) any person may 
object to, or make comments on the proposal by sending their representations to: 
 
Schoolproposalconsulation@salford.gov.uk 
 
Signed:  

 
Charlotte Ramsden 
Strategic Director, People 
Publication Date: 19, April 2021  

Page 15

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.salford.gov.uk%2Fschoolexpansion&data=04%7C01%7Cnicky.smith%40manchester.gov.uk%7C0cdc175a6a8249120e2708d8d8c3b695%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637497682487807625%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QqJKVo35B5XFfaMOw%2FDgDP12UN4YSuL3WbcSKpWvR9Y%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Schoolproposalconsulation@salford.gov.uk


 10 

Explanatory Notes 
 

1. Springwood Primary School serves the whole of the City of Salford and provides specialist 
education for children with complex needs including profound and multiple learning 
difficulties (PMLD), severe learning difficulties (SLD), communication and interaction needs 
(C&I), autism (ASD) hearing impairment (HI), Other Difficulty/Disability (OTH), Specific 
Learning Difficulty (SpLD) and Visual Impairment (VI) for children aged from 2 to 11 years. 
All children admitted to the school have an Education Health Care Plan. 
 

2. With an increase in children with Education and Health Care Plans, this has resulted in 
increased demand for places at Springwood Primary School. In order to manage this, it has 
been necessary for the Local Authority to create additional capacity (September 2017, 2019 
and 2020 academic years). Due to restrictions on the Springwood Primary School site, this 
has been achieved with the use of the Craig Hall site.  

 
3. The enlarged Springwood Primary School will fully meet the Special Educational Needs 

Improvement Test, by the provision of fully accessible buildings, curriculum and other provision 
that is inclusive, thereby improving the standard, quality and range of educational provision for 
all pupil.  
 

4. Under the proposal, as from 1 September 2021, Salford City Council is proposing to increase 
the number of pupils on roll at Springwood Primary School (increase the capacity of the school 
by 60 pupils) by enlarging onto a second site, Craig Hall, Preston Avenue, Irlam, M44 5XB. 

 
 

Page 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Proposed expansion of Springwood Primary School

